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Contact Details 

In line with Western Australian Government requirements, this Final Report is published in electronic format. In order to minimise download times and reduce 
printing, we have formatted the report in chapters. We encourage people to use recycled paper and to print double-sided if they print a copy of the report or 
sections of it.

Hard copies of this report have been digitally printed on chlorine free paper made from plantation grown timber. The paper manufacturer is certified to ISO 
14001, the international standard for environmental management.

Limited hard copies are available from the Director, Risk, Planning and Reporting:

POSTAL ADDRESS    STREET ADDRESS    ELECTRONIC
GPO Box P1174 Emergency Services Complex Email: fesa@fesa.wa.gov.au
Perth WA 6844 20 Stockton Bend Website: www.fesa.wa.gov.au
     COCKBURN CENTRAL WA Telephone: [08] 9395 9951 
      Facsimile: [08] 9395 9470 

ISSN: 1442-8288

Feedback

We are keen to receive feedback on the content and relevance of this report in meeting your requirements.  
Please forward your comments to our email or postal address.
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Glossary

AASB Australian Accounting Standards Board 

AFSM Australian Fire Service Medal

APM Australian Police Medal

ATO Australian Taxation Office

AWARE All Western Australians Reducing Emergencies

BFS Bush Fire Service

BoM Bureau of Meteorology

CEO Chief Executive Officer

CESM Community Emergency Services Manager

CFRS Career Fire and Rescue Service

DEC Department of Environment and Conservation

DFES Department of Fire and Emergency Services

DSI Detailed Site Inspection

ESL Emergency Services Levy

FAIM Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management

FESA Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

FESSB Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation Board

FESSF Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation Fund

FIPAA Fellow of the Institute of Public Administration

FRS Fire and Rescue Service

GESB Government Employees Superannuation Board

GESBS GESB Super Scheme

GSS Gold State Superannuation Scheme

GST Goods and Services Tax

GRV Gross Rental Value

JAFFA Juvenile and Family Fire Awareness

LGA Local Government Authority

NDRP National Disaster Resilience Program

NDRRA Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements

OAM Order of Australia Medal

PSM Public Service Medal

SES State Emergency Service

SMP Site Management Plan

SPO Strategic Program Office

TI Treasurer’s Instruction

VES Volunteer Emergency Service

VFRS Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service

VFS Volunteer Fire Service

VMRS Volunteer Marine Rescue Service

VMRSG Volunteer Marine Rescue Service Group

VMRWA Volunteer Marine Rescue Western Australia

WANDRRA  Western Australian Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery 
Arrangements

WAPOL Western Australia Police

WATC Western Australian Treasury Corporation

WSS West State Superannuation Scheme
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Statement of Legislative Compliance

For period ended 31 October 2012

Hon. Troy Buswell MLA BEc

Treasurer; Minister for Transport; Emergency Services

In accordance with Section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, I hereby submit for your information and presentation to Parliament the Final Report of 
the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia for the period ended 31 October 2012.

The Final Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006, as well as the Emergency Management Act 2005, 
the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia Act 1998, the Fire Brigades Act 1942 and the Bush Fires Act 1954.

As the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia ceased operations on 31 October 2012, this report is submitted, signed by the Reporting 
Officer, Mr Frank Pasquale, as appointed by the Treasurer under Section 68(1) of the Financial Management Act 2006.

                  

F Pasquale
Reporting Officer

14 December 2012
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Reporting Officer’s Report

The establishment of a Department 
of Fire and Emergency Services 
(DFES) was a key recommendation 
from the Perth Hills Bushfire 
February 2011 Review. 

On 31 October 2012, the Fire and 
Emergency Services Authority of 
Western Australia (FESA) ceased 
to exist as a consequence of the 
proclamation of the Fire and 
Emergency Services Legislation 
Act 2012. The Act abolished FESA 
and established DFES. All existing 
functions previously undertaken 
by FESA were transferred to the 
Department.

Formal planning for the transition 
to DFES began with the formation 
of a transition project team, led by 
the Program Director, Corporate 
Reform, which identified tasks 
necessary to implement  
the change. 

Representatives from the project 
team and the Corporate Leadership 
Team met regularly with advisors 
from the key State Government 
agencies and the Minister’s Office 
in order to ensure a successful 
outcome. The planning for the 
transition brought additional 
responsibilities for staff, particularly 
in the areas of legislative 
compliance, information technology 
systems modifications, records 
management, rebadging and, most 
importantly, business continuity 
planning to ensure the delivery of 
emergency response. 

The transition to a Department 
is part of a broader reform 
program being undertaken within 
the organisation. Key elements 
of the reform program are 
corporate restructuring for a more 
operationally focused organisation 
and to drive cultural change.

It includes a renewed commitment 
by all staff to embrace open and 
transparent decision making, 
improved accountability and 
governance as well as genuine 
consultation and inclusion of 
volunteers, the community and 
other key stakeholders in planning 
for service delivery. 

I congratulate all staff for the 
professional way in which they 
undertook the transition project and 
its successful outcome.

F Pasquale
Reporting Officer
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Executive Summary

Financial Overview

User charges 
and fees

95,636,000

Resources 
received free 

of charge
349,000

Service 
appropriation

34,588,000

Gain on disposal of 
non-current assets

150,000

Interest 
revenue

1,953,000Other
revenue

1,623,000 Commonwealth 
Grants and 

contributions
1,452,000

Employee 
benefits  

51,688,000 

Depreciation 
and amortisation  

3,636,000  Accommodation 
expenses
 1,735,000 

Supplies
and services
 29,538,000 

Finance costs 
 807,000 

Other
expenses
 3,562,000 

Grants and 
subsidies

 26,219,000 

Total cost of FESA services to 31 October 2012 - $117,185,000. Total sources of funding for FESA services to 31 October 2012 - $135,751,000.

As a consequence of recommendations from the Perth Hills Bushfire 
February 2011 Review, the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western 
Australia (FESA) was abolished on 31 October 2012 and re-established as 
the Department of Fire and Emergency Services. This report covers the 
activities undertaken by FESA during the period from 1 July to 31 October 
2012. It excludes results for key performance indicators. Emergency services 
performance data is affected by seasonal factors and are more appropriately 
reported annually. 

Full results for the 2012/13 financial year will be published in the first Annual 
Report of the Department of Fire and Emergency Services (DFES).

All emergency management responsibilities, staff structures and volunteer 
support functions previously held by FESA have been transferred to the 
new Department. Responsibilities previously undertaken by Emergency 
Management WA have been transferred to a State Emergency Management 
Committee Secretariat that reports directly to the DFES Commissioner.  
The Secretariat will operate as a sub-department from 1 July 2013.

Back ForwardBack Forward
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Operational Structure

Enabling Legislation

The Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia (FESA) was established in 1999 under the Fire and 
Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia Act 1998 to improve the coordination and planning of emergency 
services in Western Australia.

FESA comprises the career and volunteer Fire and Rescue Service (FRS and VFRS), the Bush Fire Service (BFS), the 
State Emergency Service (SES) and Volunteer Marine Rescue Service (VMRS), Volunteer Emergency Service (VES) and 
Volunteer Fire Service (VFS) units. We support the participation of young volunteers through our Emergency Services 
Cadets and Junior programs.

FESA also has responsibility for administering State resources to the metropolitan sea rescue groups and the service 
level agreement for Surf Life Saving Western Australia’s volunteer rescue operations. 

Responsible Minister

The Hon. Troy Buswell, MLA BEc, Treasurer; Minister for Transport; Emergency Services.

Bush Fire Service 

Fire and Rescue 
Service (Career 
and Volunteer)

State Emergency 
Service

Volunteer 
Emergency 
Service

Volunteer  
Fire Services

Volunteer Marine 
Rescue Services

Back ForwardBack Forward
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Our Vision

Resilient Western Australian 
communities that work together 
to build capacity and capability to 
prevent, prepare for, respond to and 
recover from emergencies.

Our Mission

In partnership with the people of 
Western Australia to:

•	Improve	community	safety	
practices.

•	Provide	timely,	high	quality	and	
effective emergency services.

Our Values

•	Put	the	community	first.

•	Work	together	as	a	 
committed team.

•	Respect	and	value	each	other.

•	Continuously	improve	our	
services.

•	Act	with	integrity	and	honesty.

•	Have	open	and	honest	two	 
way communications.

•	Strive	to	keep	ourselves	and	
others safe.

Our Roles and Responsibilities

We have adopted an all hazards 
approach to emergency 
management, working in 
partnership with the community and 
other agencies to prevent, prepare 
for, respond to and recover from 
emergencies.

FESA is the hazard management 
agency in Western Australia for:

•	Fire	–	rural	and	urban	fires	in	
gazetted fire districts.

•	Fire	–	level	3	bushfire	on	
Department of Environment and 
Conservation managed estates.

•	Hazardous	materials	incidents.

•	Flood.

•	Cyclone.

•	Storm.

•	Earthquake.

•	Tsunami.

•	Collapse	–	landform	or	
structures.

We also provide combat and 
support services, including: 

•	Marine	search	and	rescue.

•	Land	search.

•	Air	search	and	rescue	(including	
emergency casualty transport).

•	Urban	search	and	rescue.

•	Cliff,	cave	and	confined	space	
rescue.

•	Road	transport	emergencies.

•	Rail	transport	emergencies.

•	Animal	disease	outbreaks.

•	Telecommunications.

•	Resupply.

We facilitate State emergency 
management capacity building 
through:

•	Development	of	State	policy	and	
plans.

•	Management	of	the	Western 
Australia Natural Disaster Relief 
and Recovery Arrangements.

•	Development	of	mitigation	
initiatives.

We also provide advice and support 
on emergency management issues 
to key stakeholders at the local, 
State and national levels, including:

•	Maintenance	of	State	emergency	
management legislation.

•	Provision	of	secretariat	support	
to the State Emergency 
Management Committee 
and the State Emergency 
Coordination Group.

•Participation	in	State	and	national	
strategic working groups.

•	Provision	of	emergency	
management training in 
conjunction with the Australian 
Emergency Management 
Institute.

Back ForwardBack Forward
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Command Key Responsibilities

Office of the 
Commissioner

Corporate Reform, Health and Safety Services, Ministerial Services, Office of Bushfire Risk Management, State Emergency 
Management Committee Secretariat

Operations 
Command

Delivery of operational services through the career and Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service (FRS and VFRS), volunteer Bush Fire 
Service (BFS), Volunteer Emergency Service (VES), Volunteer Fire Service (VFS), Volunteer Marine Rescue Services (VMRS) and 
volunteer State Emergency Service (SES).

Capability Command •	Operations	capability.
•	State	hazard	planning	including	environmental	protection.
•	Built	environment	services.
•	Professional	development.
•	Operational	readiness	and	standards.	
•	Doctrine.
•	Special	risk	planning.
•	Operational	command	control,	communications	and	information	systems.
•	Community	engagement.
•	Career	and	volunteer	training.
•	Research	and	development.

Corporate Services 
Executive Command

•	Business	services,	information	resources	and	strategic	procurement.
•	Development	and	maintenance	of	information	and	communications	technology.
•	Human	resources,	including	workplace	relations,	personnel	and	payroll,	workers	compensation	and	injury	management,	

wellness, volunteer and youth support.
•	Media	and	public	affairs,	online	services	and	corporate	communications.
•	Asset	planning,	delivery	and	maintenance	of	fleet	equipment	and	property.

Governance and 
Strategy Executive 
Command

•	Risk,	planning	and	evaluation,	including	corporate	risk	management,	strategic	and	corporate	planning	and	reporting.
•	Monitoring	of	professional	standards	and	managing	related	investigations.
•	Governance,	guidance	and	assurance	on	major	organisation	projects
•	Managing	organisational	legal	and	legislative	matters
•	Change	management

Organisational Structure

Back ForwardBack Forward
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Organisational Chart

As at 31 October 2012 Chief Executive 
Officer

W Gregson
FESA BOARD

Chief Operations 
Officer Operations 

Command
L Bailey

Chief Operations 
Officer Capability 

Command
S Fewster

Executive Director 
Corporate Services 

Command
F Pasquale

Executive Director 
Governance and 

Strategy Command 
D Caporn

Assistant Chief 
Operations Officer 

Country

C Arnol

Assistant Chief 
Operations Officer 

Metropolitan

B Stringer

Assistant Chief 
Operations Officer 

Operations 
Capability

G Swift

Assistant Chief 
Operations Officer 
Hazard Planning & 

Operations Support

G Gifford

Assistant Chief 
Operations Officer 

Professional 
Development

D Klemm

Chief 
Superintendent 

Operational 
Readiness & 
Standards

Director  
Legal & Legislative 

Services

Director 
Professional 
Standards

Director  
Risk, Planning & 

Reporting

Director Strategic 
Program  
Office

Director  
Business Services

Director  
Human Resources

Director 
Information and 
Communications 

Technology

Director Media 
& Corporate 

Communications

Director  
Asset Planning and 

Delivery

Denotes a member of FESA’s Corporate Leadership Team
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The FESA Board was accountable to 
the Minister for Emergency Services 
and responsible for:

•	Determining	strategic	direction	
and overall performance.

•	Ensuring	compliance	with	key	
legislation.

•	Endorsing	management	
initiatives.

Responsibilities were delegated to 
the Chief Executive Officer under 
the provisions of the FESA Act, 
with all approved delegations held 
on a delegations register. Through 
this governance process, the FESA 
Board was able to devolve necessary 
authority and responsibility to staff 
and volunteers whilst preserving the 
controls necessary for accountability.

Members of the Board were 
appointed based on their 
experience in areas relevant to 
FESA activities. The profiles of FESA 
Board members are provided in the 
Disclosure and Legal Compliance 
section of this report.

The FESA Board was dissolved on 
31 October 2012 with the transition 
to Departmental status.

Senior Officers 

FESA’s corporate structure comprised 
four commands that coordinated and 
delivered agreed services.

FESA’s senior leadership included 
the Chief Executive Officer and 
the senior executive of the four 
commands. They were supported by 
Assistant Chief Operations Officers 
from the Operations and Capability 
Commands. The senior officers retain 
their roles and responsibilities under 
the new Department. 

Mr Wayne Gregson, APM, MBA, BA
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr Wayne Gregson was appointed 
as the Chief Executive Officer of 
FESA in September 2011 for a 
period of 12 months. His contract 
was renewed in July 2012 for a 
period of five years.

Mr Gregson joined FESA from 
Western Australia Police (WAPOL), 
where he held the rank of Assistant 
Commissioner within Judicial 
Services. He joined WAPOL as a 
cadet in 1979 and was promoted 
through the ranks to Assistant 
Commissioner level which he held 
for seven years.

Mr Gregson holds a Master of 
Business Administration from 
Edith Cowan University, Graduate 
Certificate in Applied Management 
from the Australian Institute of 
Police Management and a Bachelor 
of Arts from the University of 
Western Australia.

Senior Executives of the  
Four Command Areas

Mr Lloyd Bailey AFSM
(Chief Operations Officer, 
Operations Command)

Mr Bailey has more than 37 years 
experience in fire and emergency 
services, having commenced as a 
volunteer firefighter before joining 
the WA Fire Brigades Board in 1980 
as a recruit.

He has held a range of key roles and 
responsibilities at FESA and was awarded 
the Australian Fire Service Medal in 2003.

Mr David Caporn, APM
(Executive Director, Governance and 
Strategy Command)

Mr Caporn has more than 36 years 
experience in the public sector, 
including 32 years with Western 
Australia Police. He has a long history 
working in the areas of emergency, 
security and risk management.

The FESA Board 

Section 6 of the Fire and 
Emergency Services Authority 
of Western Australia Act 1998 
(FESA Act) established the FESA 
Board of Management and 
states:

The Board was the governing 
body of the Authority and 
in the name of the Authority 
performed the functions of 
the Authority relating to the 
provision and management of 
emergency services that are 
vested in it by or under the 
emergency services Acts.

Back ForwardBack Forward
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Mr Stephen Fewster BA(Mil), MSc
(Chief Operations Officer,  
Capability Command)

Mr Fewster has worked in both the 
State and Commonwealth Public 
Service for the past 35 years.

His roles include senior positions 
with the Departments of Defence, 
Justice, Attorney General and 
Premier and Cabinet. He has also 
held senior management positions 
with FESA in the State Emergency 
Service and Fire Services.

Mr Frank Pasquale, BCom
(Executive Director, Corporate 
Services Command)

Mr Pasquale has 23 years 
experience in the public sector, 
commencing at the Office of the 
Auditor General.

He was FESA’s Acting CEO between 
17 August 2011 and 16 September 
2011 prior to the appointment of 
CEO Wayne Gregson.

Assistant Chief Operations Officers

Mr Chris Arnol
(Assistant Chief Operations Officer, 
Country)

Mr Arnol has worked in the fire and 
emergency services for more than 
34 years.

He holds a Masters Degree in 
Public Management, a Graduate 
Certificate in Applied Management, 
is a Member of the Institute of Fire 
Engineers, and was awarded a 
Churchill Fellowship for studies in 
urban interface firefighting.

Mr Gary Gifford ESM
(Assistant Chief Operations Officer, 
Hazard Planning and Operations 
Response)

Mr Gifford has 35 years experience 
in the defence and emergency 
services industry.

Having managed significant 
emergency situations in the 
Metropolitan, Midwest, Pilbara 
and Kimberley Regions of Western 
Australia, he has acquired broad 
experience and knowledge of 
government and non-government 
agencies in an emergency and the 
importance for them to recover their 
operations and maintain business 
continuity.

Mr Darren Klemm 
(Assistant Chief Operations Officer, 
Professional Development)

Mr Klemm has more than 22 years 
experience in fire and emergency 
services.

Since joining the WA Fire Brigades 
Board in 1993, he has served 
at various metropolitan fire 
stations, followed by service in the 
Goldfields/ Midlands region as part 
of Country Operations.

Mr Brad Stringer 
(Assistant Chief Operations Officer, 
Metropolitan)

Mr Stringer has 22 years experience 
in fire and emergency services. 
He has served throughout the 
metropolitan region as a Firefighter, 
Station Officer, District Officer 
and Superintendent. He has also 
filled the role of Rural Operations 
Coordinator - North and South.

Mr Graham Swift
(Assistant Chief Operations Officer, 
Operations Capability)

Mr Swift has 32 years experience 
in fire and emergency services, 
having commenced as a volunteer 
firefighter in 1980, before moving 
to the Bush Fires Board of WA as a 
Regional Training Officer in 1994. 
He has served in both rural and 
metropolitan locations throughout 
Western Australia.
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Administered Legislation 

FESA administers the following Acts 
along with associated subsidiary 
legislation:

Bush Fires Act 1954 (and supporting 
Regulations)

Emergency Management Act 2005

Emergency Services Levy Act 2002

Fire and Emergency Services 
Authority of Western Australia Act 
1998

Fire Brigades Act 1942 (and 
supporting Regulations)

Other Key Legislation Impacting 
on FESA Activities

Associations Incorporation Act 1987

Building Act 2011

Conservation and Land 
Management Act 1984

Contaminated Sites Act 2003

Country Areas Water Supply Act 
1947

Dangerous Goods Safety Act 2004

Environmental Protection Act 1986

Freedom of Information Act 1992

Heritage of Western Australia Act 
1990

Local Government Act 1995

Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1960

Metropolitan Water Supply, 
Sewerage and Drainage Act 1909

Occupational Safety and Health Act 
1984

Road Traffic Act 1974

Workers’ Compensation and Injury 
Management Act 1981

Working with Children (Criminal 
Record Checking) Act 2004

Back Forward
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Outcome Based Management 
Framework

Link to Government Goals

FESA’s core business is to support 
Government	Goal	3	–	Outcome 
Based Service Delivery: Greater 
focus on achieving results in key 
service delivery areas for the 
benefit of all Western Australians.

FESA’s community engagement 
approach also supports the 
achievement of other Government 
goals including:

A stronger focus on the regions

Services are delivered through 
a network of regionally based 
employees and volunteers.  

Through the management of 
the Emergency Services Levy 
and volunteer support programs 
FESA assists local governments 
to maintain volunteer services 
appropriate to the level of risk in 
their communities.

Social and environmental 
responsibility

FESA supports the achievement of 
this goal through a commitment 
to develop sustainable emergency 
management strategies and 
programs targeted to meet the 
needs of local communities.

Performance Management Framework

Outcome 1

Western Australian communities able to prevent, prepare for and recover 
from emergencies.

Key Effectiveness Indicators

Number of accidental residential fires per 100,000 households.
Proportion of structural fires confined to object or room of origin.
Percentage of special risk plans for hazardous material sites reviewed 
within specified timeframes.

Key Effectiveness Indicators

Percentage of 000 calls answered within the target timeframe.
Percentage of metropolitan responses by the career Fire and Rescue 
Service within target timeframes.
Percentage of Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service turnouts within target 
timeframes	–	Hazard	Management	Agency	roles	only.
Percentage of required operational personnel trained in Level 2 and Level 
3 incident management.

Key Efficiency Indicator

Cost of Prevention and Mitigation Services per capita (Western Australia).

Outcome 2

The impact of emergencies is minimised through the delivery of 
appropriate emergency response.

Service 1

Prevention and Mitigation Services

Service 2

Emergency Services

Key Efficiency Indicator

Cost of Emergency Services per capita (Western Australia).
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Changes to Outcome Based 
Management Framework

There were no changes to  
our framework during the  
reporting period.

Shared Responsibilities with 
Other Agencies

Bushfire Response

FESA is the hazard management 
agency for all fires within Western 
Australia, including areas where 
response is managed through local 
government bushfire brigades and 
in State forest by the Department 
of Environment and Conservation 
(DEC). Effective response is 
managed through agreed protocols 
between the agencies, combined 
operational response, exercises and 
shared training. The establishment 
of an Office of Bushfire Risk 
Management will support improved 
management of bushfire threats 
across the State.

Weather Warnings

FESA and the Bureau of 
Meteorology each have a 
responsibility to ensure that 
Western Australian communities 
are informed and supported 
in preparing for emergencies 
caused by severe weather events. 
The agencies have a close 
working relationship, which is 
underpinned by a Memorandum of 
Understanding signed in December 
2011. A meteorologist is based in 
the FESA State Operations Centre 
at the Emergency Services Complex 
and provides forecasting services 
to support incident management. 
The primary objective is to 
provide incident managers with 
an understanding of current and 
predicted weather conditions to 
improve response planning.

Arson Reduction

FESA works closely with the 
Western Australia Police (WAPOL) 
and DEC in reducing arson. Joint 
agency campaigns encourage 
the community, particularly those 
vulnerable to bushfire, to be 
vigilant against arsonists and report 
suspicious behaviour. The FESA 
Extinguish Arson Database is also 
an important tool that enables Fire 
Investigation Officers and WAPOL 
to identify trends and investigators 
to monitor suspicious fire activity 
and combat arson.
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Report on Operations

Resource Agreement

(Treasurer’s Instruction 808)

Agency performance (financial and non-financial) is the subject of a resource agreement signed by the Minister for Emergency Services, the Fire and Emergency 
Services Authority of Western Australia and the Treasurer under Part 3, Division 5 of the Financial Management Act 2006.

Resources are provided for the delivery of two services, which are linked to the two agency level outcomes.

Prevention and Mitigation Services –	Western	Australian	communities	able	to	prevent,	prepare	for	and	recover	from	emergencies.

Emergency Services –	the	impact	of	emergencies	is	minimised	through	the	delivery	of	appropriate	emergency	response.

As approved by the Treasurer, this report excludes non-financial performance results against Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). KPI data is affected by seasonal 
factors that can distort partial year results. Full KPI results will be provided in the first annual report produced by the Department of Fire and Emergency 
Services.
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Report on Operations

During the reporting period, the focus was on delivery of core services and 
the progression of three major initiatives. These included implementation of 
a new corporate structure; the relocation of our corporate headquarters to 
the purpose built Emergency Services Complex in Cockburn Central and the 
planning for transition to departmental status. 

The State Government also made significant commitments to the support 
of fire and emergency services personnel through increased resource 
allocations, linked to the organisation restructure, and to the welfare of 
operational front-line staff and volunteers through the establishment of a 
career firefighter and volunteer package.

Core Services

During the reporting period, a total 9,681 incidents were recorded and 
received responses from career and volunteer personnel. Fires accounted for 
35 per cent of total incidents and system initiated false alarms for a further 
35 per cent of total incidents. The agency also worked closely with relevant 
stakeholders in preparation for the bush fire and cyclone/flood seasons 
including delivery of revised preparedness materials and annual community 
awareness programs. 

Restructure

Our new corporate structure was implemented on 1 July 2012. The new 
structure underpins our ongoing reform program designed to refocus our 
strategic direction towards core business and promote cultural change. The 
restructured Corporate Leadership Team will support efficient and effective 
delivery of services and ensure strategic decisions are aligned to frontline 
service delivery.

A key component of the restructure was the establishment of the Governance 
and Strategy Command and a new governance structure. This provides the 
Corporate Leadership Team with a mechanism to ensure that all projects are 
transparent, are in alignment with the strategic plan and realise the optimum 
return on investment.

Additional resourcing approved in the May 2012 budget provided for an 
additional $44 million over four years to enable recommendations from 
the Perth Hills Bushfire February 2011 Review and Special Inquiry into the 
November 2011 Margaret River bushfire, to be implemented. It allows for 
significant increases to front line resourcing supporting increased community 
safety in the South West. It has also allowed the establishment of an Office of 
Bushfire Risk Management and the separation of emergency management 
functions, through the establishment of a State Emergency Management 
Committee Secretariat. Both of these entities will report directly to the 
Commissioner of the new Department of Fire and Emergency Services, with 
the Secretariat operating as a sub department from 1 July 2013. 
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2 1 Section 2 - Agency Performance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Relocation to Cockburn

FESA staff commenced operations at the new state of the art $44 million 
Emergency Services Complex on 29 October 2012. The Complex was 
opened by the Premier, Hon Colin Barnett MLA on 31 October 2012. A 
total of 350 staff members have relocated into the building. Their relocation 
supports the State Government’s strategic direction for the decentralisation 
of office accommodation from the Perth City centre.

The new high-tech facility accommodates a State Operations Centre  
which is equipped with state of the art technology and resources to support 
the State’s emergency response now and well into the future. It also houses 
the triple zero Communications Centre that operates 24 hours a day, seven 
days a week. 

The facilities in the new building support a higher standard for management 
of emergency incidents across the State. Operational officers are now able 
to monitor emergency situations that are occurring around the state from 
the one location. The building utilises passive energy systems and strict 
environmental standards, earning it a green rating.

Transition to Department

Formal planning for the transition to a department commenced in 2012 
with the formation of a project team comprised of members of internal 
stakeholder groups responsible for managing the change project. Significant 
consultation was undertaken with the key State Government agencies and 
Minister’s Office in order to achieve a successful outcome. The Fire and 
Emergency Services Legislation Amendment Act 2012 was proclaimed on 
31 October 2012 to abolish the Fire and Emergency Services Authority and 
establish the new Department of Fire and Emergency Services.

Firefighter and Volunteer Support Package

During the launch of the new facility, the Premier, Minister for Emergency 
Services and Minister for Commerce announced the establishment of a 
firefighter and volunteer support package consisting of:

1.   consistent insurance coverage for all volunteers operating under the 
emergency services Acts;

2.   legislation that supports the presumption that career and volunteer 
firefighters who develop certain cancers is a result of performing a 
statutory firefighting function and entitles them to compensation; and

3.   a volunteer hardship assistance scheme.

This support package will collectively address legislative anomalies that 
place some volunteer firefighters at a disadvantage in relation to insurance 
coverage; provide a legislative basis for firefighter and volunteers, who 
develop cancer, to access a simple claims process for workers compensation; 
and provide volunteers with the opportunity to seek financial assistance during 
times of hardship.

The initiative will be implemented after the 2013 election and within the 
2013/14 financial year.
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2 3 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Financial Statements

Certification of Financial Statements for the period ended 31 October 2012

The accompanying financial statements of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia have been prepared in compliance  
with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the period  
1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012.

At the date of signing I am not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

                  

F Pasquale
Reporting Officer

14 December 2012
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2 4 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

See also note 45 ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service’.  
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

    2012 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun) 
   Note $000 $000)

COST OF SERVICES       
Expenses      
Employee benefits expense 6  51,688   158,390)  
Supplies and services 7     29,538   98,664)   
Depreciation and amortisation expense 8    3,636   11,449)   
Finance costs 9     807   2,539)   
Accommodation expenses 10     1,735   7,693)   
Grants and subsidies 11    26,219   158,221)   
Other expenses 12     3,562   3,593)   
Total cost of services     117,185   440,549)   

Income    
Revenue    
User charges and fees 13     95,636   238,987) 
Commonwealth grants and contributions 14    1,452   8,191)   
Interest revenue 15    1,953   5,167)   
Other revenue  16    1,623   6,095) 
Total Revenue    100,664   258,440) 

Gains     
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 17    150   48)  
Total Gains    150   48) 

Total income other than income from State Government    100,814   258,488)  

NET COST OF SERVICES    16,371   182,061)  

Income from State Government 18  
Service appropriation     34,588   150,576)  
Resources received free of charge     349   392) 
Royalties for Regions Fund     -   464)  
Total income from State Government    34,937   151,432)   

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD    18,566     (30,629)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    
Changes in asset revaluation surplus 33     -   692)  

Total other comprehensive income    -   692)  

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD   18,566   (29,937) 

Statement of Comprehensive Income For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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2 5 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012 2012 
    Oct Jun
   Note $000 $000

ASSETS    
Current Assets    
Cash and cash equivalents 19     52,744   54,791      
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 20    69,521   86,381   
Inventories 21    18,462   13,090  
Receivables 22   23,369   10,113 
Other assets 23    6,907   845  
Other financial assets 28    500   500  
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 24    28,636   28,636   
Total Current Assets   200,139   194,356 

Non-Current Assets    
Amounts receivable for services (holding account) 25    21,605   17,355  
Property, plant and equipment 26    269,651   265,219   
Intangible assets 27     406   441   
Total Non-Current Assets   291,662   283,015  
TOTAL ASSETS   491,801   477,371  

LIABILITIES    
Current Liabilities    
Payables 30     4,999   10,537   
Borrowings 31     33,407   33,407   
Provisions 32     19,633   20,166   
Total Current Liabilities   58,039   64,110   
Non-Current Liabilities    
Borrowings 31     41,238   42,416 
Provisions 32     8,550   8,247 
Total Non-Current Liabilities    49,788   50,663  
TOTAL LIABILITIES     107,827   114,773 

NET ASSETS     383,974   362,598    

EQUITY 33   
Contributed equity   128,853   126,043 
Reserves    80,537   80,537 
Accumulated surplus     174,584   156,018  
TOTAL EQUITY   383,974   362,598  

Statement of Financial Position As at 31 October 2012

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2 6 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Statement of Changes in Equity For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

    Accumulated) 
  Contributed)   surplus/)  
  equity) Reserves (deficit)) Total equity)) 
 Note $000) $000 $000) $000))

Balance at 1 July 2011 33   120,846)   79,845   186,647   387,338) 
 Deficit   -)     -     (30,629)  (30,629) 
 Other comprehensive income    -)     692  -)   692)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period    -)     692   (30,629)  (29,937)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:     
 Capital appropriations  -)    -    -)  -)    
 Other contributions by owners     5,471   -     -)      5,471)  
 Distribution to owners    (274)  -     -)      (274)

Total      5,197)   -    -)      5,197) 

Balance at 30 June 2012   126,043)  80,537   156,018)   362,598)  

      

Balance at 1 July 2012   126,043)  80,537   156,018)   362,598) 

 Surplus   -)    -      18,566)   18,566  
 Other comprehensive income   -)    -   -)     -)

Total comprehensive income for the period    -)   -     18,566)   18,566)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:     
 Capital appropriations    2,810)    -    -)     2,810   
 Other contributions by owners  -)    -    -)    -)  
 Distribution to owners  -)    -    -)    -)

Total    2,810)   -    -)      2,810)  

Balance at 31 October 2012     128,853)   80,537  174,584)     383,974) 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2 7 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Statement of Cash Flows For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

The Statement of Cash Flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

    2012 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun) 
   Note $000 $000)

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT    
Service appropriation    30,338   146,851) 
Capital appropriation   2,810  -)
Royalties for Regions Fund     -   464) 
Transfer of net assets from other agencies     -   4,756)  
Net cash provided by State Government     33,148   152,071)  
Utilised as follows:    
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Payments   
Employee benefits   (52,708)  (156,941)
Supplies and services     (36,222)  (98,997)
Finance costs    (1,202)  (2,070) 
Accommodation     (1,735)  (7,693)
Grants and subsidies     (31,591)  (158,746)
GST payments on purchases     (5,962)  (17,697)
Other payments     (3,596)  (3,725)
Receipts  
User charges and fees    79,132   236,254)
Commonwealth grants and contributions    1,452   8,191)   
Interest received     1,858   5,167)
GST receipts on sales    690   1,511) 
GST receipts from taxation authority    5,282   17,200)   
Other receipts    1,608   6,095)   
Net cash used in operating activities 34   (42,994)  (171,451)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
Payments    
Purchase of non-current physical assets     (8,106)  (36,185)
Receipts   
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets     223   107) 
Net cash used in investing activities    (7,883)  (36,078)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Payments    
Repayment of borrowings     (1,178)  (2,356) 
Receipts    
Proceeds from borrowings    -   31,050)  
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities     (1,178)  28,694) 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents     (18,907)  (26,764)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period    141,172   167,936) 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD 34     122,265   141,172)  
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2 8 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

1  Australian Accounting Standards

General

This is the final financial report for the Fire and Emergency Services Authority (FESA) covering the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012, and the 
statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.  The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards 
and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB).
The Authority has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.

  Early adoption of standards

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by Treasurer’s Instruction 1101 Application of 
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been 
issued or amended (but not operative) by the Authority for the reporting period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012.

2   Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) General statement

The Authority is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, 
the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions.  
Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.     
The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and 
take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements 
of the AASB.       
Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the 
resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.       

(b) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, except for land and buildings 
which have been measured at fair value.              
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless 
otherwise stated.              
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000).    
Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been made in the process of applying the 
Authority’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.    
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year.       

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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2 9 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Reporting entity

The reporting entity comprises the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia.

(d) Contributed equity

AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, 
other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners 
(at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions.  Capital appropriations have been designated 
as contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to 
Contributed equity.

The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions 
by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.  See note 33 ‘Equity’.

(e) Income

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.  The following specific recognition criteria must also be 
met before revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follow:

Provision of services 
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

Emergency Services Levy
The Emergency Services Levy (ESL) funds Western Australia’s fire and emergency services.  The majority of the ESL is raised and collected by local 
government authorities (LGA) on behalf of the Authority by including it on their council rates notices.  The ESL is calculated on the Gross Rental Value 
(GRV) of most urban properties, with a fixed rate charge per property in rural and remote areas.  The Authority raises assessment notices for the 
ESL directly for properties owned by the State Government (General Sector) in the first quarter, Local Governments in the second quarter and State 
Government instrumentalities (corporations) for large corporations in the third quarter.

LGAs either remit the ESL to the Authority on a monthly basis as they collect it (Option A), or enter into a memorandum of understanding (Option B) 
authorised by the Minister and pay the ESL they assess to FESA in four quarterly instalments (30%, 30%, 30% and 10%) or one annual instalment.  The 
annual payment option is generally selected by local governments that raise a small amount of ESL and wish to further simplify the ESL administrative 
arrangements.

All LGAs submit a Declaration of Annual Emergency Services Levy Billing Assessment Profile Return (Form A) within 14 days of issue of rates notices.  
Revenue is recognised when an invoice is issued to the LGAs. See note 13 ‘User charges and fees’.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Income (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser 
and can be measured reliably.

Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. 

Service appropriations
Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the Authority gains control of the appropriated funds.  The 
Authority gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account or credited to the ‘Amounts receivable for 
services’ (holding account) held at Treasury.  See note 18 ‘Income from State Government’.

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Authority obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value.  Contributions of services are only recognised 
when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which the Authority obtains control over the funds.  The Authority 
obtains control of the funds at the time the funds are deposited into the Authority’s bank account.

Gains
Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some 
revaluations of non-current assets.

(f) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Capitalisation/expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over 
their useful lives.  Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).

Initial recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and buildings and historical cost for all other 
property, plant and equipment.  Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation (buildings only) and accumulated impairment 
losses.  All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market buying values determined 
by reference to recent market transactions.  When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is 
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount.     

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use.  This normally applies where 
buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the 
remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost.  Where the fair value of buildings is determined on 
the depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately.   

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and recognised 
annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset’s fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining 
estimated useful life.  Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type 
assets and existing use assets.  See note 26 ‘Property, plant and equipment’ for further information.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset 
revaluation surplus.

Asset revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets as described in  note 26 ‘Property, 
plant and equipment’ and note 33 ‘Equity’.

Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the 
consumption of their future economic benefits.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable 
asset are:

Building   20 - 40 years
Vehicles     2 - 20 years
Plant and equipment   5 - 10 years

Works of art controlled by the Authority are classified as property, plant and equipment. These are anticipated to have indefinite useful lives. Their 
service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period and consequently no depreciation has been recognised.

Leasehold improvements of a capital nature are classified as property, plant and equipment. The leasehold improvement is depreciated over the lease 
term. 

Land is not depreciated. 

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Intangible assets

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalised.  The cost 
of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.  

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed 
annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by the Authority have a finite useful life and zero residual value.  

The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:

Licences  up to 10 years

Software(a)      3 to 5 years

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware.

Computer software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as property, plant and equipment.  Software that is not an integral part of the 
related hardware is recognised as an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the period of acquisition.

Website costs
Website costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or development of an asset when they may be 
capitalised and amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs of maintenance 
during the operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a website, to the extent that they represent probable future 
economic benefits that can be reliably measured, are capitalised.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets

Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Where there is an 
indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. As the Authority is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset 
has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is 
falling or where there is a significant change in useful life.  Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/
amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling 
replacement costs.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at the end of each reporting 
period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by 
reference to market-based evidence.  Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of 
impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period. 
See note 29 ‘Impairment of assets’ for  the outcome of impairment reviews and testing. 

(j) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, and are disclosed 
separately from other assets in the Statement of Financial Position. Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised. See note 24 ‘Non-
current assets classified as held for sale’.

(k) Leases

Operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased properties 
and services. See note 7 ‘Supplies and services’ and note 35 ‘Commitments’.

(l) Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost

Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be reliably measured are recognised as income at fair value.  Where the resource received 
represents a service that the Authority would otherwise pay for, a corresponding expense is recognised. Receipts of assets are recognised in the 
Statement of Financial Position.       

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. See note 18 ‘Income from State Government’.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

Back ForwardBack Forward



3 5 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Financial instruments

In addition to cash, the Authority has two categories of financial instrument:
•	Loans	and	receivables;	and
•	Financial	liabilities	measured	at	amortised	cost.	 	 	 	 	 	

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:

Financial Assets
•	Cash	and	cash	equivalents
•	Restricted	cash	and	cash	equivalents
•	Receivables
•	Amounts	receivable	for	services
•	Other	financial	assets

Financial Liabilities
•	Payables
•	Western	Australian	Treasury	Corporation	borrowings

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent 
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and 
subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. See note 2(s) for ‘Other financial assets’, note 31 ‘Borrowings’ and 
note 39 ‘Financial instruments’.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and 
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value. See note 19 ‘Cash and cash equivalents’.

(o) Accrued salaries

Accrued salaries represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the reporting period. Accrued salaries are settled within a week of the end 
of the reporting period. The Authority considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value. See note 30 ‘Payables’.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Receivables

Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables 
is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance for 
uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying 
amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days. See note 2(m) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 22 ‘Receivables’.

(q) Amounts receivable for services (holding account)

The Authority receives income from the State Government partly in cash and partly as an asset (holding account receivable). The accrued amount 
appropriated is accessible on the emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset replacement. See note 18 ‘Income 
from State Government’ and note 25 ’Amounts receivable for services’.

(r) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned by the method most appropriate for each particular class of 
inventory, with the majority being measured on a weighted average cost basis. 

Inventories not held for resale are measured at cost unless they are no longer required, in which case they are measured at net realisable value.  See 
note 21 ‘Inventories’.  

(s) Other financial assets

The Authority has classified its investments as held-to-maturity investments.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at 
initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at the end of each reporting period. Investments not at fair value are initially recognised at cost 
being the fair value of consideration given, including directly attributable transaction costs.

The Authority assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. See note 28 ‘Other 
financial assets’.      

(t) Payables

Payables are recognised when the Authority becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying 
amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days. See note 2(m) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 30 ‘Payables’.  

(u) Borrowings

All loans payable are initially recognised at fair value, being the net proceeds received. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method. See note 2(m) ‘Financial instruments’ and note 31 ‘Borrowings’.       

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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3 7 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. See note 32 ‘Provisions’.

Provisions - employee benefits

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

Annual leave

The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at 
the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 

Annual leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the present 
value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components 
such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future 
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, 
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.      

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.      

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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3 8 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Provisions (continued)

Provisions - employee benefits (continued) 

Long service leave

The liability for long service leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is recognised and 
measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 

Long service leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at 
the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of 
settlement.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components 
such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future 
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, 
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.      

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions 
are classified as non-current liabilities because the Authority has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee 
has completed the requisite years of service.     

Deferred Leave

The provision for deferred leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement to self-fund an additional 12 months 
leave in the fifth year of the agreement. The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees to be used in the fifth year. This 
liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave. Deferred leave is reported as a current provision as employees can leave the scheme at 
their discretion at any time. 

Purchased Leave

The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have entered into an agreement to self-fund up to an additional 10 
weeks leave per calendar year. The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees and is measured at the nominal amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. This liability is measured on the same basis as annual leave.    

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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3 9 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Provisions (continued)

Provisions - employee benefits (continued)

Superannuation

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB)  and other funds administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western 
Australia in accordance with legislative requirements.  Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees varies 
according to commencement and implementation dates.       

Contributions are made to the Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation Fund (FESSF) and the Government Employees Superannuation Board 
(GESB) to provide benefits for employees and their dependants on retirement, disability or death.       

The FESSF is a superannuation fund available to employees of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia.  Membership is 
also available to employees of the United Firefighters Union of Western Australia, the Western Australian Volunteer Fire Brigades Association (Inc), 
and the Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation Board (FESSB).  The FESSB is a trustee of the Fund and is responsible for managing the 
fund in the best interest of members and for ensuring the fund is managed in accordance with its governing legislation; the Fire and Emergency 
Services Superannuation Act 1985 and the Fire and Emergency Services (Superannuation Fund) Regulations 1986. The liability for superannuation 
charges is extinguished by payments of employer contributions to the FESSF.       

Members can make additional voluntary contributions to an accumulation account and are payable in addition to any defined benefit entitlement.  
Contributing members who have reached the age of 55 or completed 30 years of contributing membership can elect to transfer their defined 
benefit into their accumulation account.      

The Authority also makes employer contributions to the FESSF during the year. The FESSF is a defined benefit scheme for the purpose of 
employees and is a defined contribution plan for the Authority.  The concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Authority to the 
FESSF extinguishes the Authority’s obligations to the related superannuation liability.     

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State 
Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995.      

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, it is a defined contribution 
plan for Authority purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Authority to GESB extinguishes the 
Authority’s obligations to the related superannuation liability.      
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4 0 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Provisions (continued)

Provisions - employee benefits (continued)

Superannuation (continued)

The Authority has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS.  The liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS 
transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer.  All other GSS obligations 
are funded by concurrent contributions made by the Authority to the GESB.  The concurrently funded part of the GSS is a defined contribution 
scheme as these contributions extinguish all liabilities in respect of the concurrently funded GSS obligations.

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-
contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became 
members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).  From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees became able 
to choose their preferred superannuation fund.  The Authority makes concurrent contributions to GESB or other funds on behalf of employees in 
compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation 
schemes extinguish the Authority’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and is recouped from the Treasurer for the employer’s share.  
See note 2(w) ‘Superannuation expense’.

 Provisions - other

Employment on-costs

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and 
expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.  Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not 
included as part of the Authority’s ‘Employee benefits expense’.  The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’.  See note 12 
‘Other expenses’ and note 32 ‘Provisions’.

(w) Superannuation expense

The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises employer contributions paid to the Fire and Emergency Services 
Superannuation Fund (FESSF), the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS) (concurrent contributions), the West State Superannuation (WSS), and the 
Government Employees Superannuation Board Scheme (GESBS), or other superannuation fund.       

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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4 1 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

2   Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Establishment of volunteer entities

(i) Volunteer Emergency Service Units       
Volunteer Emergency Service Units are formed in accordance with Part 3C of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia Act 1998. 

(ii) Volunteer State Emergency Service Units       
Volunteer State Emergency Service Units are formed in accordance with Part 3A of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia Act 1998.

(iii) Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service Brigades       
Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service Brigades are formed in accordance with the Fire Brigades Act 1942.      

(iv) Volunteer Fire Service Brigades       
Volunteer Fire Service Brigades are formed in accordance with Part 3C of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia Act 1998.

(v) Volunteer Marine Rescue Service Groups       
Volunteer Marine Rescue Service Groups are formed in accordance with Part 3B of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia Act 1998.

(vi) Indian Ocean Territories Services       
In accordance with the Indian Ocean Territories Law Reform Ordinance, the Authority provides capital and operating support for the Volunteer Fire and 
Emergency Service Brigades and Volunteer Marine Rescue Service Groups operating on Christmas Island and the Cocos (Keeling) Islands. The costs 
associated with this support are recouped from the Commonwealth Government.

(y) Comparative figures

The comparative figures for the Authority are based on the  previous financial year. No comparatives have been restated.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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4 2 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

3   Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of accounting policies that have a significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  The Authority evaluates these judgements regularly.     

  Operating lease commitments

The Authority has entered into a number of leases for properties and buildings.  The depreciation of the property and buildings is based on the useful 
lives of the property and buildings.

  Depreciation

The Authority estimates the useful lives of non-current assets in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits.

4   Key sources of estimation uncertainty

   Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the reporting period.

  Long Service Leave

Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Authority’s long service leave provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates, 
employee retention rates and expected future payments.  Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amounts of the 
long service leave provision.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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4 3 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

5   Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 that impacted 
on the Authority: 

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

AASB 1054 
 

Australian Additional Disclosures

This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 2011-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman 
Convergence Project, removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to achieve 
convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2009-12 
 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 5, 8, 108, 110, 112, 119, 133, 137, 139, 1023 & 1031 and Int 2, 4, 16, 1039 & 1052]

This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations. There is no financial 
impact.

AASB 2010-4 
 

Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project [AASB 1, 7, 101 & 134 and Int 13]

The amendments to AASB 7 clarify financial instrument disclosures in relation to credit risk. The carrying amount of financial assets 
that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated is no longer required to be disclosed. There is no 
financial impact. 

The amendments to AASB 101 clarify the presentation of the Statement of Changes in Equity. The disaggregation of other 
comprehensive income reconciling the carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period for each component of equity can 
be presented in either the Statement of Changes in Equity or the Notes. There is no financial impact.  

AASB 2010-5 
  

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 101, 107, 112, 118, 119, 121, 132, 133, 134, 137, 139, 140, 1023 & 1038 
and Int 112, 115, 127, 132 & 1042]

This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2010-6 
  

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Assets [AASB 1 & 7]

This Standard introduces additional disclosures relating to transfers of financial assets in AASB 7. An entity shall disclose all transferred 
financial assets that are not derecognised and any continuing involvement in a transferred asset, existing at the reporting date, 
irrespective of when the related transfer transaction occurred. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project [AASB 1, 5, 101, 107, 108, 121, 
128, 132 & 134 and Int 2, 112 & 113]

This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 1054, removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single 
Standard to achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards. There is no financial impact.

Back ForwardBack Forward



4 4 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

5   Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting 
Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Authority has not applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that 
have been issued that may impact the Authority. Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their 
application date.

Title Operative for reporting periods  
beginning on/after

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

AASB 9 
 

Financial Instruments  

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a 
number of changes to accounting treatments.  

The Standard was reissued in December 2010. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

1 January 2013

AASB 13 
 

Fair Value Measurement  

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires disclosures about 
fair value measurements. There is no financial impact.

1 January 2013

AASB 119 
 

Employee Benefits

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.

The Standard was issued in September 2011. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

1 January 2013
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4 5 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

5   Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative (continued)

Title Operative for reporting periods  
beginning on/after

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards

This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting framework consisting of two tiers of reporting 
requirements for preparing general purpose financial statements. There is no financial impact. 

1 July 2013

AASB 2010-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 1, 2, 
3, 5, 7, 8, 101, 102, 107, 108, 110, 111, 112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 127, 128, 131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 138, 
140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and Int 2, 4, 5, 15, 17, 127, 129 & 1052]

This Standard makes amendments to Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations to introduce 
reduced disclosure requirements for certain types of entities. There is no financial impact.

1 July 2013

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 
101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The Authority has not yet determined the 
application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 January 2013

AASB 2011-2 
 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project – 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 101 & 1054]

This Standard removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single 
Standard to achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards for reduced 
disclosure reporting. There is no financial impact.  .

1 July 2013
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4 6 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

5   Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates (continued)

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative (continued)

Title Operative for reporting periods  
beginning on/after

Changes in Accounting Estimates
There were no changes in accounting estimates that will have an effect on the current reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

AASB 2011-8 
 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-
7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 
1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial 
impact. 

1 January 2013

AASB 2011-9 
 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 
[AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 & 1049]  

This Standard requires to group items presented in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they 
are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The Authority has not 
yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 July 2012

AASB 2011-10 
 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 
124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of 
issuing AASB 119 in September 2011. There is no financial impact.  

1 January 2013

AASB 2011-11 
 

Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements

This	Standard	gives	effect	to	Australian	Accounting	Standards	–	Reduced	Disclosure	Requirements	for	AASB	
119 (September 2011). There is no financial impact.

1 July 2013
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4 7 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun 
    $000 $000

6   Employee benefits expense

  Wages and salaries (a)     44,743   136,106   
  Protective clothing and uniforms     1,326   7,065 
  Superannuation - defined contribution plans: (b)

  Fire and Emergency Services Superannuation Board     4,752   13,271 
  Government Employees Superannuation Board     544   1,522   

  Other related expenses     323   426   
      51,688   158,390 

  (a)  Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave 
entitlements including superannuation contribution component. 

  (b)  Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State, GESB Super Scheme (contribution paid) and FESSB 
Fund (contribution paid). 

  Employment on-costs expenses such as workers’ compensation insurance, are included at note 12 ‘Other expenses’.

  Employment on-costs liability is included at note 32 ‘Provisions’.

7   Supplies and services

  Administration     1,127   4,141   
  Advertising and promotion expense     122   594  
  Communications      1,066   3,252  
  Consultants and contractors     9,530   24,962   
  Electricity and water expense     771   1,928 
  Insurance premiums and claims     6,325   9,064   
  Leases     3,131   25,223 
  Maintenance      5,905   25,215 
  Travel     1,561   4,285 
     29,538   98,664  

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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4 8 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun 
    $000 $000

8   Depreciation and amortisation expense

  Depreciation
  Buildings     996   3,808 
  Vehicles     2,196   6,220 
  Plant and equipment     287   930 
  Leasehold improvements     73   221
  Total depreciation     3,552   11,179   

  Amortisation
  Intangible assets     84   270 
  Total amortisation     84   270  
  Total depreciation and amortisation    3,636   11,449  

9   Finance costs
  Interest expense     807   2,539 
  Finance cost expensed     807   2,539  

10  Accommodation expenses
  Lease rentals     658   1,786 
  Repairs and maintenance    1,077   5,907  
       1,735   7,693  
    

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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4 9 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun 
    $000 $000

11  Grants and subsidies
  Recurrent
  Local governments     4,094   8,584 
  Private fire brigades     -   122
   Natural disaster grants are paid in accordance with the Western Australian Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery 

Arrangements (WANDRRA); Natural Disaster Resilience Program (NDRP); and All West Australians Reducing 
Emergencies program (AWARE).  
Grants and subsidies paid to volunteer entities and external bodies in line with approved schemes, agreements and 
statutes: 

  - Various volunteer entities (a)     475   661  
  - Volunteer Marine Rescue Service Group (VMRSG)    319   987   
  - Affiliated bodies (b)      1,563   1,060   
  - Local government - Community Emergency Services Manager (CESM)      321   1,140  
  - Other grants and subsidies     70   253  

  Capital
  Local governments     1,576   20,670   
  Volunteer Marine Rescue Service Groups   272   1,075   
      26,219   158,221 
  
  (a) See note 2(x) ‘Establishment of volunteer entities’.

  (b) See note 42  ‘Affiliated bodies’.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

      17,529   123,669  
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5 0 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun 
    $000 $000

12  Other expenses
  Doubtful debts expense     15   27  
  Employment on-costs     3,407   3,441   
  Audit fees     140   125  
      3,562   3,593  

13  User charges and fees
  User charges     2,643   6,145   
  Emergency services levy    92,993   232,842  
       95,636   238,987  

  See note 2(e) ‘Income’.

14  Commonwealth grants and contributions
  Recurrent     1,374   8,082 
  Other     78   109 
     1,452   8,191  

  Commonwealth grants are received for various purposes including non-repayable grants that contribute towards 
FESA operational capabilities such as the state support package, aerial fire fighting and the Indian Ocean Territories.

  FESA administers the Commonwealth Government’s Natural Disaster Resilience Program (NDRP); a single funding 
program aimed at developing safer, more sustainable communities that are better able to withstand the effects of 
natural disasters by reducing the risks of loss and damage caused by such events.

  The total Commonwealth contribution for the NDRP is shown in the 2009 National Partnership Agreement between 
the Commonwealth and each jurisdiction. The Agreement expires on 30 June 2013.

    
 

    

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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5 1 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun) 
    $000 $000)

15  Interest revenue
  Short term deposits     1,850   5,068) 
  Emergency services levy     103   99) 
      1,953   5,167) 

16  Other revenue 
  Employee cost recovery     886   3,103)  
  Sponsorship and donations   264   523) 
  Non reciprocal contributed assets     140   1,340) 
  Grants    31   55)
  General revenue     302   1,074) 
     1,623   6,095) 

17  Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets
  Costs of disposal of non-current assets
  Vehicles    (73)  (59) 
 
  Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 
  Vehicles     223   107) 
  Net gain    150   48)  

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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5 2 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun 
    $000 $000

18  Income from State Government

  Appropriation received during the period:
  Service appropriation (a)     34,588   150,576  
  Resources received free of charge (b)

  Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies: 
   Western Australian Land Information Authority (Landgate)     349   392  
  Royalties for Regions Fund:
   Regional Community Services Account (c)    -   336 
   Regional Infrastructure and Headworks Account (c)   -   128  
      34,937   151,432 

  
  (a)  Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered.  Appropriation revenue comprises a cash 

component and a receivable (asset).  The receivable (holding account) comprises the depreciation expense for the 
period and any agreed increase in leave liability during the period. 

  (b)  Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost are recognised as revenue at fair value of the assets 
and/or services that can be reliably measured and which would have been purchased if they were not donated.  
Contributions of assets or services in the nature of contributions by owners are recognised direct to equity. 

  (c)  This is a sub-fund within the over-arching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’.  The recurrent funds are committed to 
projects and programs in WA regional areas.  
 

19  Cash and cash equivalents

  Current
  Cash at bank    42,702   54,748 
  Short term deposits    10,000   - 
  Cash on hand and advances    42   43 
       52,744   54,791

  See note 2(n) ‘Cash and cash equivalents’.    
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun 
    $000 $000

20  Restricted cash and cash equivalents

  Current
  Gift fund (a)     64   58  
  Rental property bonds (b)    3   3  
  Restricted deposits - held in trust (c)    273   266 
  Restricted cash (d)    69,181   86,054  
      69,521   86,381 
  

  (a)    Employees contribute a gold coin donation for a weekly dress down day. The Gift fund makes annual donations to 
nominated charities. 

  (b)  Bonds held as part of residential tenancy agreements. 

  (c)   Monies held in trust by the Authority on behalf of the beneficiary, Coolgardie Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service 
Brigade.  The Fund is made available to facilitate and enhance the fire services and activities of the Brigade.  See 
note 30 ‘Payables’.

  (d)  Supplementary Funding from the State Government for anticipated Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery 
Arrangements (NDRRA) claims associated with the significant impact of the unprecedented number of natural 
disasters in 2011. 
 

21  Inventories

  Current
  Inventories held for consumption (a)     3,051   2,888  
  Inventories held for distribution (b)     15,411   10,202 
      18,462   13,090  

  (a)  Inventories held for consumption are measured at cost using the average cost method.

  (b)  Inventories held for distribution represent fire appliances under construction as part of the Emergency Services 
Levy capital grants process.  These inventories are measured at cost. See note 2(r) ‘Inventories’.  
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012) 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun 
    $000) $000

22  Receivables

  Current
  Receivables     20,677)   7,189)  
  Allowance for impairment of receivables    (34)  (49) 
  Accrued revenue    336)   438) 
  Interest receivable     235)   141) 
  GST receivable     2,155)   2,394) 
  Total current     23,369)   10,113) 

  Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:

  Balance at start of period    49))   22) 
  Doubtful debts expense    15))   27) 
  Write back of Allowance for impairment    (30))   -) 
  Balance at end of period    34))   49) 

  The Authority does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for receivables.

  See note 2(p) ‘Receivables’ and note 39 ‘Financial instruments’.

23  Other assets

  Prepayments (a)     6,907)   845) 
  Total    6,907)   845) 

  (a) Prepayments include insurance, computer maintenance, fleet registration, parking and association subscriptions.
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    2012 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct Jul - Jun 
    $000 $000

24  Non-current assets classified as held for sale   
  Opening balance
  Land (a)    6,993  -  
  Buildings (b)     21,643   - 
     28,636 -
  Assets reclassified as held for sale
  Land     -   6,993  
  Buildings     -   21,643  
      -   28,636 
  Total assets classified as held for sale
  Land    6,993   6,993  
  Buildings      21,643   21,643 
      28,636   28,636 
  Less assets sold
  Land   -   - 
  Buildings    -  - 
    - -
  Closing balance
  Land     6,993   6,993 
  Buildings      21,643   21,643 
      28,636   28,636 
     
   (a)   FESA’s headquarters relocated to the Emergency Services Complex at 20 Stockton Bend, Cockburn Central, on 29 

October 2012 with the result FESA House, located at 480 Hay Street Perth, is vacant.  FESA House does not meet the 
requirements for listing on the State Heritage Register and has been released to the market through a registration 
of interest process for its sale.  The Fire and Emergency Services Education and Heritage Centre, adjacent to FESA 
House, is a heritage listed building.  The Centre will continue to provide hazard, safety and emergency education and 
information to the community.  See note 2(j) ‘Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale’.

25  Amounts receivable for services (holding account)
  Non-current   21,605   17,355 
  Total     21,605   17,355  

   Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations.  It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave 
liability. See note 2(q) ‘Amounts receivable for services (holding account)’.    
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  2012) 2011 - 2012) 
  Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun) 
  $000) $000)

26  Property, plant and equipment
  Land
  At fair value (a)     77,707   76,893) 
  Buildings
  At fair value (a)     109,307   77,115)  
  Accumulated depreciation (b)   -   -)
    109,307   77,115)

  Buildings under construction
  Construction costs    6,556   38,718) 

  Vehicles
  At cost     93,943   94,285) 
  Accumulated depreciation     (47,747)  (46,525)
      46,196   47,760) 

  Vehicles under construction
  Construction costs     18,557   13,354)  

  Plant and equipment
  At cost     13,372   13,242)  
  Accumulated depreciation     (8,837)  (8,550)
       4,535   4,692)  

  Plant and equipment under construction
  Construction costs     6,027   5,848)  

  Leasehold Improvements
  At cost     1,080   1,080)  
  Accumulated depreciation    (472)  (399)
       608   681) 

  Works of Art
  At cost   158)   158) 
  Total    269,651   265,219)  

  (a)  Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2011 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). The valuations were 
performed during the year ended 30 June 2012 and recognised at 30 June 2012.    
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26 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

   Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in the 
table below.       

        
        Plant and)
    Buildings)  Vehicles)   equipment)
    under)  under) Plant and) under) Leasehold) Works of 
  Land) Buildings) construction) Vehicles) construction)  equipment) construction) Improvements) Art Total)
  $000) $000) $000) $000) $000) $000) $000) $000) $000 $000)

 Oct 2012
 Carrying amount as at 1 July 2012  76,893   77,115   38,718   47,760   13,354   4,692   5,848   681   158   265,219) 
 Additions   -   -   2,000   187   5,801   17   179   -   -   8,184) 
 Transfers   814   33,188   (34,162)  598   (598)  113   -   -   -   (47) 
 Other disposals   -   -   -   (153)  -   -   -   -   -   (153)
 Depreciation   -   (996)  -   (2,196)  -   (287)  -   (73)  -   (3,552)

 Carrying amount as at 31 October 2012   77,707   109,307   6,556   46,196   18,557   4,535   6,027   608   158   269,651) 

 Jun 2012
 Carrying amount as at 1 July 2011  79,351   102,933   21,346   44,716   10,169   5,132   3,525   794   158   268,124) 
 Additions   118   597   20,514   491   12,285   493   2,323   -   -   36,821) 
 Transfers   44   2,990   (3,142)  9,100   (9,100)  -   -   108   -   - ) 
 Other disposals   (129)  (144)  -   (327)  -   (3)  -   -   -   (603)
 Classified as held for sale  (6,993)  (21,643)  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   (28,636) 
 Revaluation increments/(decrements)   4,502   (3,810)  -   -   -   -   -   -   -   692) 
 Depreciation   -   (3,808)  -   (6,220)  -   (930)  -   (221)  -   (11,179)

 Carrying amount as at 30 June 2012   76,893   77,115   38,718   47,760   13,354   4,692   5,848   681   158   265,219) 
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    2012) 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun) 
    $000) $000)

27  Intangible assets
  Computer software
  At cost     2,537 )   2,489) 
  Accumulated amortisation     (2,131)  (2,048)
       406 )   441) 
  Reconciliations:
  Computer software
  Carrying amount at start of period    441)   362)  
  Additions     49)    349)  
  Amortisation expense     (84)  (270)
  Carrying amount at end of period    406   441)  

28  Other financial assets
  Current 
  Held-to-maturity investments (a)  500)   500) 
  Total   500)   500) 

   (a) See note 2(s) ‘Other financial assets’.) 

29  Impairment of assets
   There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment or intangible assets as at 31 October 2012. 
   The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period.  At the 

end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use.  
  See note 2(i) ‘Impairment of assets’. 

30  Payables
  Current
  Trade payables     717   7,933) 
  Accrued interest      301   696) 
  Accrued salaries     64   888) 
  Client account - trust fund    273   266)  
  Income received in advance    3,119   -) 
  GST payable     525   754)  
  Total current     4,999   10,537)  

  See note 2(t) ‘Payables’, note 2(o) ‘Accrued salaries’, note 20 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’ and note 39 ‘Financial instruments’.  
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    2012) 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun 
    $000) $000

31  Borrowings
  Current

  Western Australian Treasury Corporation borrowings     33,407   33,407

  Non-current

  Western Australian Treasury Corporation borrowings     41,238   42,416 

32  Provisions
  Current
  Employee benefits provision
   Annual leave (a)     7,463   8,518  
   Long service leave (b)     9,638   9,095 
   Deferred salary scheme (c)     175   122   
      17,276   17,735

  Other provisions
   Employment on-costs (d)     2,357   2,431
      19,633   20,166

  Non - current
  Employee benefits provision
   Long service leave (b)     7,501   7,237  

  Other provisions
   Employment on-costs (d)     1,049   1,010
      8,550   8,247

  (a)  Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at 
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is 
expected to occur as follows: 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period     6,810   7,783
More than 12 months after the reporting period     653   735 

      7,463   8,518 
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    2012) 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun) 
    $000) $000)

32  Provisions (continued)

  (b)  Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual 
settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period     2,507   2,449)  
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period    14,632   13,883)  

      17,139   16,332)   

  (c)    Deferred salary scheme liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Actual settlement of the liabilities is 
expected to occur as follows: 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period    -)   -)  
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period   175)   122)   

     175)  122)   

  (d)  The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs 
including workers’ compensation insurance.  The provision is the present value of expected future payments

        The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 12 ‘Other 
expenses’.  
 

  Movements in other provisions
  Movements in each class of provisions during the financial period, other than employee benefits, are set out below.  
    
  Employment on-cost provision
  Carrying amount at start of period    3,441   3,572)    
  Reversal of provisions recognised      (35)  (131)  
  Carrying amount at end of period    3,406   3,441)  

  See note 2(v) ‘Provisions’.
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    2012) 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun) 
    $000) $000)

33  Equity

   The Government holds the equity interest in the Authority on behalf of the community.  Equity represents the residual 
interest in the net assets of the Authority.  The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting 
from the revaluation of non-current assets. 

  Contributed equity
  Balance at start of period     126,043)    120,846) 

  Contributions by owners    
  Capital appropriation  2,810)   -)

  Transfer of net assets from other agencies
   Western Australian Police Service for the Community Country Network  -)   4,756)  
   Parcel of land at Lot 560 Salmon Gum, Kambalda, transferred by Shire of Coolgardie under Management Order  -)    60)  
   Parcel of land and building at Lot 92 Forrest Street, Beverly, transferred by Shire of Beverly under Management Order  -)   304)  
   Building at Lot 102 Wandoo Parade, Wundowie, transferred by Shire of Northam under Management Order  -)   351)

  Total contributions by owners     2,810)   5,471) 

  Distributions to owners
  Transfer of net assets to other agencies      
   Parcel of land and building at Lot 312 Boronia Avenue, Wundowie, transferred to Shire of Northam under Management Order -)  (129) 
   Parcel of land and building at Lot 27 Vincent Street, Beverly, transferred to Shire of Beverly under Management Order  -)  (117)
   Parcel of land at Lot 1508-1509 Irish Mulga, Kambalda, transferred to Shire of Coolgardie under Management Order  -)  (28)

  Total distributions to owners    -)   (274)

  Balance at end of period    128,853)   126,043) 
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    2012) 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun) 
    $000) $000)

33  Equity (continued)

  Reserves
  Asset revaluation surplus
  Balance at start of period     80,537)   79,845)  
  Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
   Land     -)   4,502)   
   Buildings     -)   (3,810)
  Balance at end of period     80,537)   80,537)  

  Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 
  Balance at start of period    156,018)   186,647)   
  Result for the period     18,566)   (30,629) 
  Balance at end of period    174,584)   156,018)  

  Total Equity at end of period   383,974)   362,598) 
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    2012) 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun) 
    $000) $000)

34  Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 

  Reconciliation of cash 

   Cash at the end of the financial period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in 
the Statement of Financial Position as follows: 

  Cash and cash equivalents  (note 19 ‘Cash and cash equivalents’)  52,744)   54,791)   
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents  (note 20 ‘Restricted cash and cash equivalents’)   69,521)   86,381)  
      122,265)   141,172 ) 

  Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities
  Net cost of services     (16,371)  (182,061)
  Non-cash items:
  Depreciation and amortisation expense  (note 8 ‘Depreciation and amortisation expense’)  3,636)    11,449)   
  Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment  (note 17 ‘Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets’)   (150)  (48)
  Resources received free of charge  (note 18 ‘Income from State Government’)  349)   392)    
  Doubtful debt expense  (note 12 ‘Other expenses’)  15)   27)    
  Write back of allowance for impairment  (note 22 ‘Receivables’)  (30)  -)    
  Adjustment for other non-cash items   -)   (199)

  (Increase)/decrease in assets:
  Current receivables (a)    (13,480)  (3,354) 
  Other assets     (6,062)  134 )   
  Current inventories     (5,372)  (525)

  Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
  Current payables (a)     (5,309)  402  
  Current provisions    (533)  1,396) 
  Non-current provisions     303)   (79) 
  Change in GST in receivables/payables (b)     10)   1,015) 
  Net cash used in operating activities     (42,994)  (171,451)

  (a)  Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of 
non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items.   

  (b) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.   
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    2012) 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun 
    $000) $000

35  Commitments

  The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant.

  Capital expenditure commitments

   Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the 
financial statements, are payable as follows: 

  Within 1 year     52,028   32,379  
  Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years     -   -  
  Later than 5 years      -   -  
       52,028   32,379  
  
  The capital commitments include amounts for:
  Buildings     46,001   26,531  
  Plant and equipment     6,027   5,848  
       52,028   32,379  

  Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

   Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows: 

  Within 1 year     6,373   3,989 
  Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years     2,136   3,363  
  Later than 5 years     18   23  
       8,527   7,375   

   FESA’s fleet, commercial and residential leases account for the majority of the non-cancellable operating lease commitments. The fleet lease term varies 
depending on the vehicle.  The lease payments are fixed for the term of the lease and are payable monthly.  There is no option to renew the lease at the 
end of the lease term.    
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36  Contingent liabilities and contingent assets       

  Contingent liabilities      

  The following contingent liabilities are additional to the liabilities included in the financial statements.     

  Contaminated sites

Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Authority is required to report known and suspected contaminated sites to the Department of 
Environment and Conservation (DEC). In accordance with the Act, DEC classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the environment 
and environmental values. Where sites are classified as contaminated - remediation required or possibly contaminated - investigation required, the 
Authority may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses.       

In 2006/07 the Authority reported one contaminated site to DEC. The site is a former drum storage area at the FESA Training Centre located at Dundas 
Road, Forrestfield.  The Authority is unable to assess the likely outcome of the classification process.  It is not practicable to estimate the potential 
financial effect or to identify the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflows. The Authority has applied and received funding from 
the Contaminated Sites Management Account to undertake further investigative work.       

In August 2008, a contract was awarded to a qualified consultant to undertake a Detailed Site Investigation (DSI) including soil and gas vapour surveys.  
In October 2008, an accredited contaminated sites auditor was also appointed to provide a mandatory audit report as part of the DSI. The DSI was 
completed in late 2009 and the comprehensive report delivered to FESA mid 2011. The report indicates no immediate need for site remediation, but 
this may be a consideration in future depending on site development plans.          

Golder Associates was commissioned by FESA to develop a Site Management Plan (SMP) for future contamination monitoring and guidelines which 
can be referenced when conducting future works on the site.  The draft plan has been sent to DEC for comment and advice on future monitoring 
arrangements. Once this is finalised, future works and required funding will be determined.  

37  Events occurring after the end of the reporting period  

   Royal assent was given to the Fire and Emergency Services Legislation Amendment Bill 2012 on 29 August 2012. This legislation effectively wound up 
the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia and transferred the Authority’s powers to the new Department of Fire and Emergency 
Services. The legislation became effective on 1 November 2012. 
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38  Explanatory statement

   Significant variances between estimates and actual results for the current and previous reporting period    
   The current reporting period is for four months, 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012, and not a complete financial year. Therefore, any comparison to the 

previous reporting period would mislead users of the statements and would not be a meaningful comparison.      
 

  Significant variances between actual results for the current and previous reporting period     
   The current reporting period is for four months, 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012, and not a complete financial year. Therefore, any comparison to the 

previous reporting period would mislead users of the statements and would not be a meaningful comparison.      
       

39  Financial instruments

  (a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, Western Australian Treasury Corporation 
(WATC) borrowings, receivables and payables. The Authority has limited exposure to financial risks. The Authority’s overall risk management program 
focuses on managing the risks identified below.

  Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
Authority.               

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying 
amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in the table at note 39(c) ‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 22 
‘Receivables’.            

Credit risk associated with the Authority’s financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amounts receivable for services (holding 
account).  For receivables other than government, the Authority trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Authority has policies in 
place to ensure that sales of services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.  In addition, receivable balances are monitored on 
an ongoing basis with the result that the Authority’s exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no significant 
concentrations of credit risk.        

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Authority is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.        

The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business.       

The Authority has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdown of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that 
sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.       
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    2012) 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun 
    $000) $000

39  Financial instruments (continued)

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

  Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the 
Authority’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.  The Authority does not trade in foreign 
currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks.  The Authority’s exposure to market risk for changes in 
interest rates relates primarily to short-term investments and long-term debt obligations. 

All borrowings are due to the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC) and are repayable at fixed rates with 
varying maturities.  The risk is managed by WATC through portfolio diversification and variation in maturity dates.  
Other than as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity analysis table at note 39(c), the Authority is not exposed to 
interest rate risk as apart from minor amounts of restricted cash in short-term investments, all other cash and cash 
equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and all borrowings are with the WATC.    
          

  (b) Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the 
reporting period are:       

  Financial Assets
  Cash and cash equivalents    52,744   54,791 
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents      69,521   86,381
  Loans and receivables (a)      42,819   25,074  
 
  Financial Liabilities
  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost     79,119   85,606

  (a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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39  Financial instruments (continued)

  (c) Financial instrument disclosures

  Credit risk
   The following table discloses the Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Authority’s maximum 

exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below.  The table discloses the ageing of 
financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of 
the Authority. 

  The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to the financial assets it holds. 

  Ageing analysis of financial assets

                                                  Past due but not impaired

    Carrying Not past Up to 1 1 - 3 3 - 12 1 - 5 More Impaired 
    Amount due and not month months months years than 5  financial
     impaired     years assets
    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

  As at 31 October 2012
  Cash and cash equivalents   52,744   52,744   -   -   -   -   -   - 
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents   69,521   69,521   -   -   -   -   -   -
  Receivables (a)   21,214   21,176   -   2   15   21   -  - 
  Amounts receivable for services   21,605   21,605   -   -   -   -   -   - 
  Other financial assets  500     500   -   -   -   -   -   - 
     165,584   165,546   -   2   15   21  -   - 

  As at 30 June 2012
  Cash and cash equivalents   54,791   54,791   -   -   -   -   -  - 
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents   86,381   86,381   -   -   -   -   -   -
  Receivables (a)   7,719   7,619   46   8   6   40   -   - 
  Amounts receivable for services   17,355   17,355   -   -   -   -   -   - 
  Other financial assets   500   500   -   -   -   -   -   - 
      166,746   166,646   46  8   6   40   -  - 

  (a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).      
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39  Financial instruments (continued)

  (c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)

  Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure 
   The following table details the Authority’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities.  The 

maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. 
       

                    Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

                                     Interest rate exposure                              Maturity dates    
    
    Weighted Carrying Fixed Variable Non-interest Nominal Up to 1 1 - 3 3 - 12 1 - 5 More  
    Average Amount interest interest bearing amount month months months years than 5 
    Effective  rate rate       years 
    Interest
    Rate 
    % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

  As at 31 October 2012 
  Financial Assets
  Cash and cash equivalents  4.57   52,744  10,000      42,744   -      52,744    52,744   -   -   -   - 
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents  4.57   69,521   -     69,521   -      69,521    69,521   -   -   -   - 
  Receivables (a)  -     21,214   -     -     21,214    21,214    21,214   -   -   -   - 
  Amounts receivable for services  -     21,605   -     -     21,605    21,605    21,605   -   -   -   - 
  Other financial assets  -     500     -     500     -     500   -   -   500   -   -  

       165,584   10,000   112,765   42,819    165,584     165,084    -   500   -   - 

  Financial Liabilities
  Payables  -     4,474   -     -     4,474    4,474     4,474    -   -   -   -  
  WATC borrowings  4.17   74,645   -     -     -      74,645     33,260     4,477     9,868    12,371     14,669   

       79,119   -   -   4,474    79,119     37,734     4,477     9,868    12,371     14,669  

  (a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).    

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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39  Financial instruments (continued)

  (c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)

                    Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

                                     Interest rate exposure                              Maturity dates    
    
    Weighted Carrying Fixed Variable Non-interest Nominal Up to 1 1 - 3 3 - 12 1 - 5 More  
    Average Amount interest interest bearing amount month months months years than 5 
    Effective  rate rate       years 
    Interest
    Rate 
    % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

  As at 30 June 2012
  Financial Assets
  Cash and cash equivalents   5.61    54,791    -    54,791   -      54,791    54,791   -   -   -  - 
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents   5.61    86,381    -       86,381   -     86,381   86,381   -   -   -  - 
  Receivables (a)  -      7,719    -     -      7,719     7,719    7,719    -   -   -   - 
  Amounts receivable for services   -      17,355    -     -      17,355    17,355   17,355   -   -   -   -  
  Other financial assets  -     500   -     500   -      500   -   -  500   -   -  

        166,746    -   141,672    25,074     166,746    166,246    -   500   -   - 

  Financial Liabilities
  Payables   -     9,783   -     -      9,783     9,783   9,783    -   -   -    -  
  WATC borrowings   5.26   75,823   -     -     -      75,823   2,268     4,507     41,006    13,196     14,846   

       85,606   -   -    9,783     85,606    12,051    4,507     41,006    13,196     14,846  

  (a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).     

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

39  Financial instruments (continued)

  (c) Financial instrument disclosures (continued)

  Interest rate sensitivity analysis

   The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period 
on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates.  It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the 
reporting period.       

                -100 basis points                               +100 basis points 
    Carrying  
   amount   Surplus)   Equity)    Surplus)   Equity) 
    $000  $000)  $000)   $000)  $000)

  As at 31 October 2012
  Financial Assets
  Cash and cash equivalents   52,744   (527.4)  (527.4)   527.4)   527.4)  
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents    69,521   (695.2)  (695.2)    695.2)    695.2)  

  Financial Liabilities
  WATC borrowings   74,645    746.5)   746.5)     (746.5)  (746.5)
  Total (Decrease)/Increase   (476.1)  (476.1)    476.1)    476.1) 

                -100 basis points                               +100 basis points 
   Carrying  
   amount   Surplus)   Equity)    Surplus)   Equity) 
    $000  $000)  $000)   $000)  $000)

  As at 30 June 2012
  Financial Assets
  Cash and cash equivalents    54,791    (547.9)  (547.9)    547.9)   547.9)  
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents    86,381    (863.8)  (863.8)    863.8)    863.8)  

  Financial Liabilities
  WATC borrowings   75,823    758.2)   758.2)     (758.2)   (758.2) 
  Total (Decrease)/Increase   (653.5)  (653.5)    653.5)   653.5) 

  Fair Values
   All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at 

amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.      
    

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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    2012) 2011 - 2012 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun 
    $000) $000
40  Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers
  Remuneration of members of the accountable authority
   The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the 

financial year, fall within the following bands are:       
     2012 2011-2012 
     Jul-Oct       Jul-Jun 
     $  No. No.
  0 -  10,000  11   7 
    10,001 -  20,000  1   4 
    30,001 -  40,000  -   1 
  120,001  -  130,000 1   - 
  290,001  -  300,000 -   1 
  The total remuneration of members of the accountable authority    163   401  
  The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members of the accountable authority.
  Remuneration of senior officers
   The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority, whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, 

non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial period, fall within the following bands are:     
     2012 2011-2012 
     Jul-Oct       Jul-Jun 
     $  No. No.
     0 -  10,000  1   - 
     10,001  -  20,000 1   - 
     40,001 -  50,000  -    1 
     50,001  -  60,000 8   1 
       60,001  -  70,000 5   1 
   70,001  -  80,000 1   1 
   80,001  -  90,000  1   - 
   110,001  -  120,000 -    1 
  130,001  -  140,000 -    1 
  160,001  -  170,000 -    1 
  170,001  -  180,000 -   2 
  180,001  -  190,000  -   2 
  190,001  -  200,000  -   2 
  220,001  -  230,000  -   2 
  250,001  -  260,000 -    1 
  270,001  -  280,000 -    1 
  320,001  -  330,000  -    1
  The total remuneration of senior officers     966   3,213  
   The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as 

members of the accountable authority.        
      

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

    2012) 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun) 
    $000) $000)

41  Remuneration of auditor

  Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial period is as follows:

  Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance indicators (a)   53)  129) 
  Auditing the accounts of the Western Australia Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements     -)   7) 
      53)   136) 

  (a) Key performance indicators were not audited in the reporting period ending 31 October 2012.   
 
42  Affiliated bodies

  The following are classified as non-government affiliated bodies and receive direct and/or indirect financial assistance.

   Direct financial assistance is given in the form of a grant.  Indirect financial assistance is given in the form of 
administrative support including the use of a motor vehicle and running costs, office accommodation and minor 
administrative support.  

  Association of Volunteer Bush Fire Brigades WA Inc  25)   25) 
  Emergency Services Volunteer Association Inc   25)   25) 
  SES Volunteers Association of Western Australia Inc  25)   25) 
  Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc  1,203)   620) 
  Volunteer Marine Rescue Western Australia Inc  25)   50) 
  Western Australian Volunteer Fire Brigades Association Inc  273)   273)  
      1,576)   1,018) 

43  Supplementary financial information

  (a) Write-Offs
   Public property written-off by the accountable authority during the reporting period  30)  -)
      30)   -)  
   

  (b) Losses through theft, defaults and other causes
   Losses of public money and public and other property through theft or default   -)   38)  
   Amounts recovered    -)  (25)
      -)  13)  

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012

Back ForwardBack Forward



7 4 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance
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    2012) 2011 - 2012) 
    Jul - Oct) Jul - Jun) 
    $000) $000))

44  Indian Ocean Territories

   Funds are provided by the Commonwealth Department of Regional Australia, Local Government, Arts and Sport to provide services to the Indian Ocean 
Territories as specified in the Service Delivery Arrangements entered into between the State and Commonwealth.    
   

  Opening Balance    656)   425)  
  Total Receipts   157)   628)  
  Total Expenditure    (114) (397)
  Closing Balance    699)   656) 

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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45  Schedule of income and expenses by service
       Period ending 31 October 2012      Period ending 30 June 2012 

   Prevention)  Emergency  Prevention  Emergency  
   Services)  Services Total  Services Services Total)
   $000) $000 $000 $000 $000 $000)

  COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense    7,820)   43,868   51,688   20,255   138,135)  158,390)
Supplies and services   3,963)   25,575   29,538   10,896   87,768)  98,664)
Depreciation and amortisation expense     513)   3,123   3,636   1,362   10,087)  11,449)
Finance costs    114)   693   807   302   2,237)  2,539)
Accommodation expenses    243)   1,492   1,735   912   6,781)  7,693)
Grants and subsidies    3,435)   22,784   26,219   2,377   155,844)  158,221)
Loss on disposal of non-current assets    -)   -   -  2   11)   13)  
Other expenses    399)   3,163   3,562   719   2,874)  3,593)

Total cost of services    16,487)   100,698   117,185   36,825   403,737)  440,562)

Income
User charges and fees  10,692)   84,944   95,636   28,439   210,548)  238,987)
Commonwealth grants and contributions    162)   1,290   1,452   974   7,217)  8,191)
Interest revenue   218)   1,735   1,953   615   4,552)  5,167)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets   17)   133   150   7   54)  61)
Other revenue    181)   1,442   1,623   726   5,369)  6,095)

Total Income other than income from State Government   11,270)   89,544   100,814   30,761   227,740)  258,501)

NET COST OF SERVICES    5,217)   11,154   16,371   6,064   175,997)  182,061)

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation    3,867)   30,721   34,588   17,919   132,657)  150,576)
Resources received free of charge    39)   310   349   47   345)   392)   
Royalties for Regions fund    -)   -   -   55   409)   464 ) 

Total Income from State Government    3,906)   31,031   34,937   18,021   133,411)  151,432)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period   (1,311)  19,877   18,566   11,957   (42,586)  (30,629) 

The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes to the Financial Statements For the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Parliament of Western Australia 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES AUTHORITY OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia. 

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 October 2012, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes 
in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

Reporting Officer’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Fire and Emergency Services Authority ceased to exist on 31 October 2012. The Treasurer appointed a Reporting Officer under section 68 of the Financial 
Management Act 2006 who was responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted 
in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and 
that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Reporting Officer’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Reporting Officer, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Fire and Emergency 
Services Authority of Western Australia at 31 October 2012 and its financial performance and cash flows for the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012. They are 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions. 

Auditor General
7th Floor Albert Facey House  
469 Wellington Street Perth  
MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849 
TEL: 08 6557 7500   FAX: 08 6557 7600 
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Report on Controls 

I have audited the controls exercised by the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia during the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012. 

Controls exercised by the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia are those policies and procedures established by the Board to ensure 
that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions. 

Authority’s Responsibility for Controls 

The authority was responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities were in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the controls exercised by the Fire and Emergency Services Authority 
of Western Australia based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  An audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of controls to ensure that the Authority complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and implementation of relevant controls. I believe that the audit evidence obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

Opinion

In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia are sufficiently adequate to provide reasonable 
assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in 
accordance with legislative provisions during the period 1 July 2012 to 31 October 2012. 
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Independence

In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance 
Standards, and other relevant ethical requirements. 

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators 

This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements of the Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia for the period 1 July 2012 to 31 
October 2012 included on the Department of Fire and Emergency Services’ website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the website. 
The auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been 
hyperlinked to/from these financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, 
they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements to confirm the information contained in this website version of the financial 
statements.

COLIN MURPHY  
AUDITOR GENERAL  
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA
Perth, Western Australia
21 December 2012

Back ForwardBack Forward



7 9 Section 3 - Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Other Financial Disclosures

Pricing Policy of Services 
Provided

User charges and fees are reviewed 
annually. Increases in user charges 
and fees are generally limited to 
increases in the consumer price 
index as advised by the Department 
of Treasury and Finance.

The Emergency Services Levy 
(ESL) was introduced in 2003/04 
and provides the majority of the 
funding to enable effective service 
delivery for bushfires and structure 
fires, cyclones, earthquakes, floods, 
incidents involving hazardous 
materials, severe storms, tsunamis, 
road crash rescues and a range of 
search and rescue call outs.

 

The ESL is a Western Australian 
Government charge that is 
primarily invoiced and collected 
by local government, with the 
funds remitted to FESA. ESL rates 
and charging parameters are 
determined annually by the Minister 
for Emergency Services to raise an 
approved amount each year.  
The 2011/12 budget, rates 
and charging parameters were 
published in the Government 
Gazette on 30 May 2011.

Indemnity  
Insurance

An insurance policy is taken out 
to indemnify members of the 
FESA Board, directors and officers 
against any liability incurred under 
Sections 13 or 14 of the Statutory 
Corporations (Liability of Directors) 
Act 1996.

The amount of the insurance 
premium paid for 2012/13 was 
$21,430. The proportion relating to 
this reporting period is $7,143.

Natural Disaster Mitigation – 
Grants and Subsidies

Natural disaster grants are paid 
in accordance with the Western 
Australian Natural Disaster Relief 
and Recovery Arrangements 
(WANDRRA); Natural Disaster 
Resilience Program (NDRP); and 
All West Australians Reducing 
Emergencies program (AWARE). 

Between 1 July and 31 October 2012 
FESA provided $17,629,000 in grants 
to support natural disaster mitigation 
and recovery.
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Capital Works Staff Profile

Capital Projects Incomplete Estimated 
Completion

(Financial Year)

CFRS Bassendean / Kiara Fire Station 2012/13

VFRS Kambalda Fire Station 2012/13

Strategic	Land	Acquisition	Program	–	Butler 2012/13

Strategic	Land	Acquisition	Program	–	Kensington 2012/13

CFRS Wangara Station Modifications 2013/14

Bunbury Collocation 2013/14

CFRS Butler 2013/14

Capital Projects Completed Completion

Emergency	Services	Complex	–	Cockburn October 2012

2011/12 
as at  

30 June 
2012

As at 
31/10/12 

2010/11 
as at  

30 June 
2011

Full time permanent 1,353 1,363 1,304

Full time contract 44 41 35

Full time trainees 3 26 0

Full time apprentices 1 1 1

Part time permanent 33 30 27

Part time contract 6 11 9

On secondment (at FESA)1 14 20 10

On secondment (to other agencies) 4 8 5

Casual 0 2 3

Total (headcount) 1,444 1,482 1,384

1  On secondment (at FESA) employees have been excluded from total 
headcount.
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Governance Disclosures

Ministerial Directives [TI 903(12)]

No ministerial directives were 
received during the reporting 
period.

Contracts with Senior Officers

At the date of reporting, other than 
normal contracts of employment of 
service, no senior officers, or firms of 
which senior officers are members, 
or entities in which senior officers 
have any substantial interests, had 
any interest in existing or proposed 
contracts with FESA.

FESA Board Members as at  
as at 31 October 2012

Chairman

Mr Allan Skinner, PSM, FAIM, 
FIPAA

A retired career State public 
servant, Mr Skinner was a former 
Chief Executive Officer of the 
Department of Land Administration 
and Chair of the Bush Fires Board. 
Since his retirement in 2001, he 
has undertaken several consulting 
assignments for Government. 
He is a National Fellow of the 
Institute of Public Administration 
Australia (FIPAA) and a Fellow of the 
Australian Institute of Management 
(FAIM). Mr Skinner was awarded the 
Public Service Medal in 2001 and 
the Centenary Medal in 2003.

First appointed: 31 December 2002.

Appointed as Chairman: 28 April 2008.

State Emergency Service Volunteer 
Representative

Mr John Capes, OAM

Mr Capes has been involved in the 
State Emergency Service Volunteer 
Association in many capacities for 
the past 20 years. After leaving 
the Australian Government, he 
established his own business, 
Capes Consultancy Services, which 
supplies expertise on security 
and the facilitation of emergency 
management exercises.

First appointed: 2 November 1999.

Appointed Deputy Chairman:  
22 February 2010.

Deputy Chairman 

Bush Fire Services Consultative 
Committee Chairman

Mr Bruce Brennan, APM

Mr Brennan had a long and 
distinguished career with  
Western Australia Police (WAPOL), 
rising to the rank of Deputy 
Commissioner before his retirement 
in 2003. Mr Brennan represented 
WAPOL on many committees, 
including the State Emergency 
Management Committee. In 1998, 
he was awarded the Australian 
Police Medal.

First Appointed: 6 February 2006.

Deputy	Chairman:	28	April	2008	–	 
22 February 2010.
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Chief Executive Officer  
(Ex-Officio Member)

Mr Wayne Gregson, APM, MBA, BA

Mr Gregson was appointed as the 
Chief Executive Officer of FESA 
in September 2011 for a period 
of 12 months. Mr Gregson joined 
FESA from Western Australia Police 
(WAPOL), where he was Assistant 
Commissioner Judicial Services. 
He joined WAPOL as a cadet in 
1979 and operated at the Assistant 
Commissioner level for seven 
years. Mr Gregson holds a Master 
of Business Administration from 
Edith Cowan University, Graduate 
Certificate in Applied Management 
from the Australian Institute of 
Police Management and a Bachelor 
of Arts from the University of 
Western Australia.

Bush Fire Brigade Volunteer 
Representative

Mr Eddie van Rijnswoud

Mr van Rijnswoud has 17 years 
experience as a Bush Fire Brigade 
volunteer and was the Secretary of 
the Association of Volunteer Bush 
Fire Brigades Western Australia 
Inc. for six years. For many years Mr 
van Rijnswoud has been involved 
in a variety of other voluntary 
community organisations and 
committees and also has 37 years 
experience in the public sector.

First appointed: 7 December 2001.

FESA Employee Representative

Mr Iain Agnew

Mr Agnew has been an employee 
of FESA since 1979. He is a 
Senior Firefighter in the Fire and 
Rescue Service and is currently 
on secondment to the Staff 
Deployment Branch. In 2000 he was 
appointed a member of the Fire 
and Rescue Service Consultative 
Committee and has also been a 
committee member of the United 
Firefighters Union of Australia, West 
Australian Branch.

First appointed: 25 November 2003. 

Fire and Rescue Service 
Consultative Committee 
Chairwoman

Mrs Penelope Valentine

Mrs Valentine was a FESA staff 
member for seven years before 
leaving in July 2005 to pursue 
private business interests. Her 
professional career spans more 
than 40 years, commencing in 
journalism and more recently in 
management positions in media 
and public affairs, strategic planning 
and corporate governance with 
FESA. She currently serves in 
a voluntary capacity on several 
local government and community 
committees.

First appointed: 6 February 2006.
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Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service 
Representative

Mr Trevor Jones

Mr Jones has a long association 
with the Volunteer Fire and Rescue 
Service (VFRS) in regional Western 
Australia. He has been a member 
of the South Kalgoorlie VFRS since 
1977, including a five year term as 
Captain, and the Kalgoorlie VFRS 
since its inauguration in 2005, where 
he holds the position of Secretary. 
Mr Jones is currently the Goldfields 
Zone representative for the WA 
Volunteer Fire and Rescue Services 
Association.

First appointed: 6 February 2006.

State Emergency Service 
Consultative Committee 
Chairwoman

Ms Sandra Gregorini

Ms Gregorini has been a volunteer 
Bush Fire Brigade member for 
more than 14 years and has been 
involved in a number of other 
community groups since 1966. She 
has 32 years experience in property 
development and management and 
is a current Councillor of the City of 
Swan. Sandra was Deputy Chair of 
this committee for 2007/08.

First Appointed: 19 March 2002.

Volunteer Marine Rescue Services 
Consultative Committee Chairman

Mr Ross Monger

Mr Monger was a public servant 
for 43 years, mostly in State court 
administration. On his retirement 
in 2007, he was appointed Director 
of Magistrates Courts Western 
Australia. Mr Monger also spent 
10 years with WorkCover Western 
Australia as the director responsible 
for workers’ compensation dispute 
resolution. He is currently a Justice 
of the Peace and a lay member of 
two ethics committees.

First appointed: 28 April 2008.

Volunteer Marine Rescue Services 
Volunteer Representative

Mr Eliot Fisher, ESM

Mr Fisher is the Commander 
Bunbury Sea Rescue and has 
had many years’ experience as a 
volunteer with the Bunbury and 
York State Emergency Service units, 
Bunbury Volunteer Marine Rescue 
and the York Bush Fire Brigade. He 
is the former National Commander 
of the Australian Navy Cadets and 
is currently the Chairman of the 
Fairness and Resolution Authority 
(ANC). Mr Fisher has also served in 
the Citizen Military Forces and spent 
more than 20 years as a leader in 
the Scout Association of Australia. 
Formerly a local government CEO, 
he retains an active interest in rural 
communities as Western Australian 
Local Government Association Zone 
Executive Officer for the South West.

First appointed: 28 April 2003.
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Western Australian Local 
Government Association 
Representative

Councillor Christine Thompson

Cr Thompson is a Councillor of the 
Shire of Murray and the Chair of the 
Shire of Murray Local Emergency 
Management Committee. She also 
represents local government on 
the Peel Region District Emergency 
Management Committee. Cr 
Thompson has a wealth of 
experience in emergency services, 
is a current volunteer firefighter and 
has served on a number of advisory 
committees and boards.

First appointed: 30 May 2000.

Independent Member

Ms Jenny Sales

Ms Sales has more than 20 years 
experience at senior levels in the 
Government of Western Australia. 
Her extensive public service 
career included working with the 
Department of the Premier and 
Cabinet in the role of Assistant 
Director General. Since 2007 Ms 
Sales has provided management 
consultancy services to the Western 
Australian public sector. More 
recently, she has been involved 
in relocation consultancy for the 
resources sector.

First appointed: 19 April 2011.

During the Reporting period the 
FESA Board met four times.

Finance and Audit Committee

Members of FESA’s Finance and 
Audit Committee comprised: 

Wayne Gregson 

Jenny Sales 

John Capes 

Eliot Fisher 

Eddie van Rijnswoud 

During the reporting period, the 
committee met once.
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

Other Legal Requirements

Advertising

(Electoral Act 1907)

In accordance with Section 175ZE 
of the Electoral Act 1907, FESA 
incurred the following expenditure 
in advertising, market research, 
polling, direct mail and media 
advertising.

Total expenditure to 31 October 
2012 was $50,670.

Expenditure was incurred in the 
following areas:

Advertising agencies $27,054 Adcorp Australia Limited

Albany Advertiser Pty Ltd

Auto Trader Australia Pty Ltd

Britel Enterprises Pty Ltd

Department of Treasury

Hallmark Editions Pty Ltd

Hyden FESA Unit

Manjimup Newsagency

Nannup Telecentre Inc

Seek Online Pty Ltd

West Australian Newspapers Limited

Walpole Community Resource Telecentre (Inc)

$23,824 

$200 

$709 

$723 

$146 

$250 

$50 

$54 

$62 

$495 

$514 

$27 

Market research organisations Nil

Polling organisations Nil

Direct mail organisations Nil

Media advertising 
organisations

$23,616 Goolarri Media Enterprises Pty Ltd

News Digital Media Pty Ltd

Optimum Media Decisions (WA) Ltd

Wide Shot Productions

$3000

$827

$19649

$140
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

(State Records Act 2000 and State 
Records Commission Standard 2 
Principle 6)

Record Keeping System

Under Section 21 (a) of the State 
Records Act (WA) 2000 new 
agencies must lodge a draft Record 
Keeping Plan to the State Records 
Office within six months after its 
creation. The Fire and Emergency 
Services (FESA) Record Keeping 
Plan is being reviewed and will 
be provided to the State Records 
Office in March 2013 to reflect the 
creation of the new Department 
of Fire and Emergency Services 
(DFES).

A review of the FESA Thesaurus 
has been undertaken and the 
development of a classification 
system is underway. 

The results of a survey undertaken 
to determine current recordkeeping 
practices within FESA was used 
to develop a strategy for records 
management practices within DFES. 

Training Program

Regular audits of the Total 
Records and Information 
Management System (TRIM) 
system are undertaken to ensure 
compliance, quality of indexing and 
understanding of recordkeeping 
practices. There is an established 
TRIM training program.

The online records management 
program has become an integral 
part of the records management 
policy and TRIM training. Online 
records management training will 
be included in the DFES induction 
program. 

Move to New Emergency Services 
Complex

FESA relocated to the new 
Emergency Services Complex in 
Cockburn on 29 October 2012. 
The records management plan was 
used to identify records that were 
essential for business continuity and 
to minimise the risk of any corporate 
records being inappropriately 
disposed of or lost. It also ensured 
a controlled transfer of records held 
by staff in offices and on shared 
and personal drives during the 
relocation.

Disposal Program

The disposal program which 
commenced in 2011/12 has 
continued with more than 203 boxes 
sent to offsite storage during this 
final reporting period. Of these 
an estimated 20 boxes contain 
information of archival value. 

A review of the records held in 
district and regional offices has 
commenced as part of the Record 
Keeping Plan.

Record Keeping Plans

Back Forward
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Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia

(Freedom of Information Act 1992 
– Section 111)

During the reporting period a total of 
54 valid applications were received.

Most applications sought access 
to non-personal information from 
Operational Services (including 
Fire Incident Reports and Fire 
Investigation Reports) in relation  
to domestic and commercial 
structural fires. 

The average processing time for 
each application was 24 days, for 
the financial year 2011/2012 the 
processing time was 30 days. This 
time frame is within the maximum 
period of 45 days permitted under 
the FOI Act.

FESA’s Information Statement, 
which	is	required	under	Part	5	–	
Publication of Information about 
Agencies of the FOI Act, was 
last updated in December 2010. 
The Information Statement and 
Application Form will be available 
on the new DFES website. The 
Information Statement is currently 
being reviewed to bring it in line 
with on-going legislative changes.

Freedom of Information Applications (1/7/12 to 31/10/12)

Applications carried over from previous reporting period 8

New valid applications received within this reporting period 54

Applications transferred from another agency 0

Total	applications	for	period	1/7/2012	–	31/10/2012 62

Applications withdrawn or invalid (includes documents not found) 3

Applications transferred in full to another Government agency 0

Edited access granted 48

Full access granted 0

Access denied 0

Access Deferred 1

Total applications dealt with during period 1/7/2012 – 31/10/2012 52

Applications not yet finalised (rolled over to next reporting period) 10

Freedom of Information Fees and Charges 1/7/2012 – 31/10/2012

Application fees collected $1,620.00

Actual charges collected $675.20

Charges waived (when processing costs are less than $20.00) $238.50

Freedom of Information
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